Dover AFB

 
Military aviation arrived at Delaware in the foreshadow of World War II.  While many isolationists throughout the country resisted any military buildup, it became apparent by 1939, with Nazi Germany’s invasion of Poland, that the United States could no longer remain unprepared.  In an attempt to lay the framework for a coastal defense network, the Civilian Aviation Administration (CAA) offered state and local governments that bordered both oceans financial aid to build municipal airports.  The only stipulation being that the construction sites be on government owned land and that the CAA fully funded the building of the airfields.

The CAA offered to build one airfield in each of Delaware’s three counties, but state officials declined, citing concerns of financially supporting the three new airports.  The state passed the offer down to the county governments, and New Castle and Sussex Counties both voted in favor of the deal, but Kent County declined and passed the offer to the city of Dover, Delaware’s capitol.  After much discussion, Dover leaders agreed and purchased 587 acres southeast of town to be the new airfield’s site.  The cost of the land was $35,000 and the purchase would later prove to be the best investment the city ever made. 


Construction began on Dover Municipal Airport’s three hard-surface runways and one hangar foundation in March 1941.  Funding flowed very slowly and resulted in a snail’s pace of construction. That later changed with the Japanese bombing of Pearl Harbor, Hawaii, on 7 December 1941.  That event propelled the United States into World War II and ten days later, the Department of War leased all three of the incomplete municipal airports in Delaware for use as coastal patrol bases.  With war declared, construction requirements increased considerably at Dover with the Army Corps of Engineers assuming responsibility for construction and laboring 24 hours a day, seven days a week, to ready the base for wartime operations.  These early occupants of the base did not have running water or electricity, requiring them to eat from mess kits and bathe at civilian facilities.  In addition to these early hardships, unusually heavy rains turned the airfield into a quagmire and hampered operations.   

On 20 December 1941, the first military unit arrived at Dover’s new airfield -- the 112th Observation Squadron of the Ohio National Guard.  Equipped with O-47s, the 112th flew anti-submarine patrols off the Delaware Coast.  Later, in 1942, three B-25 bomber squadrons arrived and assumed the anti-submarine mission.  Following a 1943 construction project that lengthened the main runway to 7,000 feet, seven P-47 fighter squadrons arrived and trained for their eventual involvement in the European Theater.  Then, in 1944, the Air Technical Service Command chose the base to engineer, develop, and then conduct classified air launched rocket tests.  The information collected during these experiments resulted in the use of air-to-surface rockets in both the European and Pacific combat theaters.


The years following the Allied victory in World War II presented an uncertain future for Dover Army Airfield.  Following a brief tenure as a pre-separation stop for returning troops, the base was placed in caretaker status in 1946.  On 1 February 1951, the 148th Fighter Interceptor Squadron of the Pennsylvania Air National Guard arrived with F-51s and reactivated the base as an Air Defense Command installation.   Different fighter squadrons occupied the airfield for about seven years, along with other numerous operating agencies, but no single mission settled.  In the meantime, the base’s facilities, many of them constructed hastily and designed to last only as long as World War II, began deteriorating.  That changed when the Military Air Transport Service (MATS) recognized the value of Dover AFB’s geographic location.  The command assumed control of the base on 1 April 1952 and chose it as the new home for the 1607th Air Transport Wing (ATW), laying the framework for Dover’s current mission.

Congress budgeted $25 million for the expansion of Dover Air Force Base and in accordance with the appropriation, MATS transformed it into an East Coast embarkation point.  When the first personnel from the 1607th ATW arrived, they immediately initiated a massive construction program.  In the first year alone, 95 buildings were repaired or remodeled and construction began on a new chow hall and communications facility.  While this represented a step in the right direction, much more had to be done.  Dover AFB did not have military family housing units to accommodate the personnel increase and its hospital worked out of old dormitories connected by walk-ways.  To correct these deficiencies, the base’s leadership secured contracts for a new hospital, completed in 1958, and 1,250 Capehart housing units, completed in 1961.  

These projects provided the facilities needed to care for the base’s personnel, but facilities to perform the mission were inadequate.  There were no hangars or nose docks capable of housing the large propeller driven transports, which meant maintenance personnel used portable shelters that enclosed portions of aircraft parked on the ramp.  Also, there was no aerial port facility to handle the large amounts of cargo that accompanied the new mission.  Once again, these deficiencies were promptly addressed with the construction of Dover’s first airfreight terminal and early work on maintenance buildings in 1954. 
The increase in operations at Dover was in direct proportion to the influx of personnel.  During its decade long stay in Delaware, the 1607 ATW operated C-54 Skymasters, C-124 Globemasters, C-133 Cargomasters, and C-141 Starlifters.  These aircraft provided humanitarian airlift after the 1960 earthquake in Chile, played a role in the Cuban Missile Crisis, airlifted United Nation’s peace-keepers to the Belgian Congo, and supported America’s increasing role in Vietnam.  

On 1 January 1966, the Military Air Transport Service was redesignated the Military Airlift Command and in conjunction with the reorganization, the 1607 ATW inactivated and the 436th Military Airlift Wing (436 MAW) activated and assumed the mission at Dover.  The 436 MAW started replacing its C-141s and C-133s with the new C-5 Galaxy in 1971 and two years later, Dover AFB became home to the first all C-5 equipped wing in the Air Force.

To augment the transition to an all C-5 wing, the Air Force retired the 912th Military Airlift Group, an Air Force Reserve associate, and replaced it with the 512th Military Airlift Wing (Associate) on 1 July 1973.  The 512th MAW(A) later became the 512th Airlift Wing (A) during the Air Force reorganization of 1991 and its proud contributions to accomplishing the airlift mission, in tandem with the 436 AW, have truly founded the “Dover Team” concept.  


As stated earlier, the purchase of the land to construct the base was one of the City of Dover’s best investments.  Dover Air Force Base has an economic impact of more than $470 million on the local economy and now ranks as Delaware’s third largest industry.  Today, the airlift mission continues at Dover Air Force Base.  Anytime a crisis arises in the world, Dover 

C-5s respond, providing global airlift and powerful support. 

